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Metro East Sanitary District
Madison and St. Clair Counties, Illinois

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Metro East Sanitary District in Madison and St. Clair Counties,
Illinois, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We did not audit
the financial statements of the business-type activities which is 100% of the assets, net position and revenues of

the business-type activities as of and for the year ended March 31, 2014 were audited by other auditors as
discussed below in the Other Matters section.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the business-type activities or the major proprietary funds as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2014, which represents 100% of the assets, net position, fund balance and revenues of the business-
type activities and the major proprietary funds. Those statements were audited by Allison Knapp & Siekmann,
Ltd., who joined with Scheffel Boyle as of October 1, 2014 and whose report has been fumished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the business-type activities and the major proprietary
funds, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with U. S.
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

www.scheffelboyle.com '

AN FTTOCIDT MDD |

IBDQ

ALLIANCE US,




purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reason-
ableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinions on the Governmental Activities, the Business-Type Activities and Each Major
Proprietary Fund

The District has not recognized the other post-employment benetit (OPEB) expense or obligation which is
required in accordance with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles and under Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, to be recorded in the government-wide financial statements and in
the proprietary fund financial statements. The effects of that departure on the financial statements are not rea-
sonably determinable. The District has also not disclosed the descriptive information about the other post-
employment benefits required by standards.

Qualified Opinion on the Governmental Activities, the Business-Type Activities and Each Major
Proprietary Fund

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, except for the omission of the OPEB
expense, obligation and disclosures as described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinions on the Governmental
Activities, the Business-Type Activities and Each Major Proprietary Fund” paragraph, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities of the Metro East Sanitary District in Madison and St. Clair Counties, Illinois, as of December 31, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position, thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with U. S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

In addition, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, except for the omission of the
OPEB expense, obligation and disclosures as described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinions on the Governmental
Activities, the Business-Type Activities and Each Major Proprietary Fund” paragraph, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities and each major proprietary fund of the Metro East Sanitary District in Madison and St. Clair Counties,
Nlinois, as of March 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of each major governmental fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Metro
East Sanitary District in Madison and St. Clair Counties, Illinois, as of December 31, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position, thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with U. S. generally accepted

accounting principles.
Other Matters

Prior Year Summarized Comparative Information

The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the District’s December 31, 2013
financial statements and the March 31, 2014 financial statements of the District’s proprietary fund, which were

-



both audited by Allison Knapp & Siekmann, Ltd., who joined with Scheffel Boyle as of October 1, 2014 and
whose reports expressed qualified opinions due to the omission of the OPEB expense and obligation and
disclosures on the respective financial statements of the governmental and business- type activities and each
major proprietary fund and unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of each major govem-
mental fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Metro East Sanitary District in Madison and
St. Clair Counties, Illinois as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2014 in accordance
with U. 8. generally accepted accounting principles.

Required Supplementary [nformation

U. S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary
comparison information and IMRF Trend Information, presented on pages MDA 1-8 and Schedules A and B, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic finan-
cial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with U. S. generally accepted auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively com-
prise the Metro East Sanitary District in Madison and St. Clair Counties, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The
supplementary information and the other information sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underly-
ing accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U. S. generally accepted auditing standards. In

our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The other information, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Adehsgpet. Brgle-

Belleville, Illinois

April 29, 2015
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MDA 1
METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

The Metro East Sanitary District (the “District™) management’s discussion and analysis is designed to (1) assist the
reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the District’s financial activity, (3)

identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget) and (4} identify individual fund issues
or concerns.

Since Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year’s activities,

resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it with the District’s financial statements (beginning on
Page 4).

Financial Highlights

As noted in Exhibit A, total assets for the governmental activities totaled $24,046,627 with $12,201,804
being invested in capital assets, $7,750,634 invested in cash and certificates of deposit, $101,897 restricted
for Corps of Engineers projects, and $3,992,292 of other assets.

Also as noted in Exhibit A, total assets for the business-type activities totaled $8,611,308 with $5,738,259
being invested in capital assets, $2,013,679 invested in cash and certificates of deposit, $6,208 restricted for
the 203 Pump Station, $749,188 receivable from sewer customers, $513 interest receivable, $92,659 due

from Granite City Regional Treatment Plant — overpayment and 510,802 in loans from the Metro East
Sanitary District.

The District’s net position, as noted in Exhibit B, decreased by $706,042 during the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2014. The governmental net position decreased by $562,490, the business-type activities net
position decreased by $143,552.

The District’s combined Governmental Funds ending fund balance decreased $280,404 during the year
ended December 31, 2014, as noted in Exhibit E.

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTION OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statement’s focus is on both the District ag a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual

funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a
basis for comparison and enhance the District’s accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see Pages 4-6} are designed to emulate the corporate sector in that ail
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total for the Primary
Govemment. The business-type activities are a blended component unit of the District. The focus of the Statement
of Net Position (the “Unrestricted Net Position™) is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the District and
its governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates governmental fund’s
current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations using the
accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Activities (see Page 6) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities (including
governmental and business-type), which are supported by the government’s general taxes and other resources. This

is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of various governmentai services and/or
subsidy to various business-type activities.

(See independent auditor’s report)



MDA 2

METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The Governmental Activities reflect the District’s basic services, including surface water drainage, levee repairs and
administration. Property taxes and replacement taxes finance the majority of these services. The business-type
activities reflect private sector type operations (Sewer Fund), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of
the cost of operations, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Fund Financial Statement allows the demonstration of source and uses and/or
budgeting compliance associated therewith. Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the
Fund Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is now on major funds, rather than fund types. Al
of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental Funds

The Governmental Major Fund Presentation (see Pages 7 and 9) is presented on a sources and uses of liquid
resources basis (current financial resources measurement basis). This is the manner in which the financial plan {the
budget) is typically developed. The flow and availability of liquid resources is a clean and appropriate focus of any
analysis of a government. The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. The District maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General and Tort Liability funds which are both considered to
be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental tunds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary Funds
An Enterprise Fund is used to report the same functions presented in Business-Type Activities in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (see Pages 11-15) provide the same type of information as the Government-
Wide Financial Statements, only in more detail. The Sewer Fund is considered a major fund of the District and is
presented in Proprietary Fund Financial Statements.

Fiduciary Funds

The Fund Financial Statements also allow the government to address its Fiduciary Fund {Blue Water Ditch Fund,
see Page 16). While this fund represents trust responsibilities of the government, these assets are restricted in
purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government. Therefore, these assets are not presented as
part of the Government-Wide Statements.

While the business-type activities column on the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements is the same as the business-
type column at the Government-Wide Financial Statement, the Governmental Funds Total column requires a
reconciliation because of the different measurement focus (current financial resources versus economic resources)
which is reflected on the page following each statement (see Pages 8 and 10). The flow of current financial
resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers as other financial sources, as well as capital expenditures
and bond principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate
the capital assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into the governmental activities column (in the
Government-Wide Statements).

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on Pages
19-40 of this report.

{See independent auditor’s report.)



MDA 3

METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information including the major governmental fund budgetary schedules and data concerning the
District’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found on Pages 41-45 of this report. The combining and individual fund statéments for non-

major governmental funds are presented on Pages 46-48 of this report, immediately following the required
supplementary information.

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government’s largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm sewers, etc.) have neither
been reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. This statement requires that these assets be
valued and reported within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide Statements. Additionally, the
government must elect to either (1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life, or (2) develop a system of
asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the government develops
the asset management system (the modified approach), which periodically (at least every third year), by category,
measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may

record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The District has chosen to depreciate assets over their useful
life.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position

As noted in Exhibit B, the District's overall financial position had a significant decline over the past year resulting in
a decrease in combined net position from fiscal year 2013, decreasing by $706,042 from $27,253,672 to
$26,547,630. Governmental activities had a decrease of $562,490 from 520,875,905 to $20,313,415 and business-
type activities had a decrease of $143,552 from $6,377,767 to $6,234,215. As noted in Exhibit A, net position for
governmental activities total $20,313,415 with $12,201,804 being invested in capital assets (buildings, roads,
equipment, etc.), net of related debt. The net position of the business-type activities total $6,234,215 with
$3,703,080 invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Listed below are the District’s assets at December 31, 2014 and 2013, including a column noting changes
(increases/decreases) from 2013.

Table 1: Statement of Assets as of December 31, 2014

Total Primary Government Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease)
Other assets 3 14,717,872 $ 15,191,791 $ (473,919)
Capital assets 17,940,063 18,335,122 (395,059)
Total Assets $ 32,657,935 $ 33,526,913 5 (868,978)

Listed below are the District’s liabilities at December 31, 2014 and 2013, including a column noting changes
(increases/decreases) from 2013.

Table 2: Statement of Net Assets as of December 31, 2014

Total Primary Government {Increase)
2014 2013 Decrease
Accounts payable $369,214 $402,154 $(32,940)

{See independent auditor’s report.)
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METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Total Primary Government {Increase)
2014 2013 Decrease
Accrued payroll 71,776 61,876 9,900
Current portion of long-term debt 163,716 159,385 4,331
Pension contributions payable 42,136 41,254 882
Long-term liabilities 2,280,921 2413664 (132,743)
Total liabilities $2,927,763 | $3,078333 |  $(150,570) |
Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable property tax $3,182,542 | 33,194,908 $(12,366)

For more detailed information see the Statement of Net Position (Pages 4-5).

Net position of the District’s governmental activities decreased from $20,875,905 for year ending December 31,
2013 to $20,313,415 for vear ending December 31, 2014. This was a 2.69 percent (2.69%) decrease from the
previous year. The District’s unrestricted net position for governmental activities; the part of net position that can be

used to finance day-to-day operations, was $3,064,220. Net investment in capital assets totaled $12,201,804.

Restricted assets totaled $5,047,391 with $101,897 restricted for escrow accounts, $1,862,270 restricted for tort

immunity and $2,680,476 restricted for levee rehabilitation and $402,748 restricted for auditing, municipal

retirement and social security.

The net position of business-type activities was $6,234,215, The District can use the unrestricted net position of
$2,530,584 to finance the continuing operation of its sewage treatment facility. The investment in capital assets, net

of related debt totaled $3,703,080. Restricted net position totaled $551 for the 203 Pump Station.

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary

presentation.

Normal Impacts on Net Position

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net position.

Borrowing for Capital — which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.

There is a second impact, an increase in the investment in capital assets and an increase in related debt, which will

not change the investment in capital assets, net of related debt.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital - which will (a) reduce current assets and increase
capital assets and (b) will reduce unrestricted net position and increase investment in capital assets, net of related

debt.

Principal Payment on Debt — which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce
unrestricted net position and increase investment in capital assets, net of related debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — which will reduce capital assets and investment in capital

assets, net of related debt,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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MDA 5

METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Current Year Impacts on Net Position
The District’s combined net position (which are the District’s bottom line) decreased by $706,042, which was the
result of the governmental activities net position decreasing by $562,490 and the business-type activities net position
decreasing by $143,552.

Changes in Net Position
The following table shows the condensed revenue and expenses of the District’s activities:

Table 3: Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014

Total Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary Primary
Activities Activities Government  Government
2014 2014 2014 2013
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services 3 214990 $§ 2839483 $§ 3,054473 $ 3,067,103
Operating grants - - - -
General revenues
Taxes
Property 2,899,312 - 2,899,312 2,953,882
Payment in lieu of taxes 28,063 - 28,063 12,497
Replacement 1,334,347 - 1,334,347 1,518,810
Gain {Loss on sale of capital assets) - (1,966) (1,966) (93,520)
Other revenue 26,314 2,755 29,069 37,049
Total revenues 4,503,026 2,840,272 7,343,298 7,495,821
Expenses
Governmental Activities
General government 2,053,105 - 2,053,105 2,146,600
Drainage and sanitation 3,012,411 - 3,012,411 3,052,465

Business-Type Activities

Sewer - 2,983,824 2,983,824 2,926,602

Total expenses 5,065,516 2,983,824 8,049,340 8,125,667
Changes in net position (562,490) (143,552) (706,042) (629,846)
Net Position - Beginning 20,875,905 6,377,767 27,253,672 27,883,518
Net Position - Ending $ 20,313,415 § 6234215 §$ 26,547,630 $ 27,253,672

B ———————————————

{See independent auditor’s report.)
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METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Normal Impacts on Revenues and Expenses

There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below.

Revenues:

Economic Condition — which can reflect a declining, stable, or growing economic environment and has a
substantial impact on replacement tax, utility revenue as well as public spending habits for volumes of
consumption.

Increase/Decrease in District-Approved Rates — while certain tax rates are set by statute, the District
Board has significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (property taxes and
sewage treatment).

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and non-recurring) —
certain recurring revenues (State-share revenues, etc.) may experience significant changes periodically
while non-recurring (or one-time) grants are less predictable and often distorting in their impact on year-to-
year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment Income — the District’s investment portfolio is managed using a similar
average maturity to most governments. Market conditions may cause investment income to fluctuate,

Introduction of New Program — within the functional expense categories (General Government and
Drainage and Sanitation) individual programs may be added or deleted to meet changing community needs.

Increase in Authorized Personnel — changes in service demand may cause the District Board to

increase/decrease authorized staffing. Staffing costs (salary and related benefits) represent 56.57% of
the District’s General Fund and 35.60% of Sewer Fund operating costs.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit) — the ability to attract and retain human and intellectual
resources requires the District to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the market place.

Inflation — while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the District is a major consumer of
certain commodities such as supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may experience unusual
commodity-specific increases.

Current Year Impacts
Governmental Activities
Revenues and Expenses: 2
Revenues for governmental activities decreased by $59,338 or 1.34% to a total of $4,503,026. Expenses

decreased by $133,549 or 2.57% to a total of $5,065,516. Expenses exceeded revenue by $562,490 for the
2014 year.

General governmental expenses decreased by $93,495 due mainly to decreases in Flood Prevention i
expenses. The drainage and sanitation expenses decreased by $40,054 due mainly to decreases in 3
maintenance costs,

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Revenues and Expenses:

Revenues for the business-type activities decreased by $93,185 or 3.18% to a total of $2,840,272.
Operating expenses increased by $90,079 or 3.08% to a total of $2,839,483. Overall expenses exceeded
revenues by $143,552 for the 2014 fiscal year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

At December 31, 2014 the Governmental Funds (as presented on Page 7) reported a combined fund balance
of $8,304,121, This is a decrease of $280,404 or 3.27% from the previous year. Of the total fund balance,
$2,675,303 is unassigned indicating availability for continuing District services. Restricted fund balance of
$5,435,009 includes $2,249,888 for tort immunity, $2,680,476 for levee rehabilitation and $504,645 for
other restrictions. The nonspendable funds include $193,809 for prepaid expenses.

The General Fund is the District’s main operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. Expenditures exceeded revenues by $291,937.

Proprietary Funds

At December 31, 2014 the Proprietary Funds (as presented on Pages 11-15) total net position is $6,234,215,
which is a decrease of $143,552 or 2.25 %.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Table 4: General Fund Budgetary Highlights

2014
Original and 2014 2013
Final
Budget Actual Actual
Revenues $4.231,308 $4,096,110 $4,231,798
Expenditures 5,312,570 _4,388.047 4,753,436
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures $(1,081,262) ${291,937) $(521,638)

General Fund actual revenues were 34,096,110 or 3.20% less than the final budget.

General Fund actual expenditures were $4,388,047 or 17.40% less than the final budget. Various insurances, motor
fuel and lubricants, general maintenance materials and supplies, pump station equipment and buildings were
responsible for the actual expenditures to be less than the final budget.

The District’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31,
2014, total $15,904,884 which is $279,674 or 1.73% less than the previous year. The net investment in capital

assets includes land, buildings, equipment, and improvements other than underground systems, and infrastructure as
well as the related debt.

Please see the accompanying financial statements notes for additional information related to the District’s capital
assets.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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METRO EAST SANITARY DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

For additional information related to the District’s business-type fund, please see the District Clerk for copies of
separately issued financial statements {see below for address).

DEBT OUTSTANDING
In fiscal year 2014, the District's long-term debt related to compensated absences totals $422,489. This is an
increase of 371,491 or 20.37% from the previous year. The Business-Type Activities Sewer Funds has an additional
long-term debt of $2,150,564 for the repayment of a project funded through the Illinois Environmental Protection
Agency (IEPA).
The District, as of December 31, 2014, has a legal debt margin of $43,448,886.
Please see the accompanying financial statements notes for additional information related to outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The focus of next year’s budget will be on the District's efforts to ensure the long-term health of the District’s
General Fund. This Fund pays for most District services except sewage treatment.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers and creditors with a general overview of the
District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning

this report or requests for additional financial information should be directed to Rosemarie Heath, District Clerk,
Metro East Sanitary District, 1800 Edison Avenue, PO Box 1366, Granite City, [L. 62040.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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ASSETS
Cash
[nvestments
Resiricted escrow accounts
203 Pump Station
Design Escrow
Corps of Engineers
Receivables
Property taxes
Replacement taxes
Due from other funds
Loans receivable
Metro East Sanitary District
Granite City Regional Treatment -
overpayment
Due from the City of Venice -
sewer break
Interest receivable
Other
Sewer fees
Billed
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets
Land/construction in progress
Assets being depreciated (net
of accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Current portion of long-term debt
Pension contributions payable
Noncurrent liabilities
lilinois EPA loan
Compensated absences

Total liabilities

EXHIBIT A
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of December 31, 2013)
2014 2013
Total Total
Governmental  Business-Type Primary Primary
Activities Activities Government  Government
$ 1,802,188 § 1,861,339 $ 3,663,527 § 2,743,941
5,948,446 152,340 6,100,786 7,423,791
- 6,208 6,208 38,117
1,726 - 1,726 1,751
100,171 - 100,171 100,108
3,334,648 - 3,334,648 3,383,811
210,269 - 210,269 314,063
118,295 - 118,295 22,770
- 10,802 10,802 -
- 92,659 92,659 -
- - - 23,856
4,212 513 4,725 4,078
131,059 - 131,059 141,551
- 749,188 749,188 754,530
193,809 - 193,809 239,424
1,715,418 191,000 1,906,418 1,906,418
10,486,386 5,547,259 16,033,645 16,428,704
24,046,627 8,611,308 32,657,935 33,526,913
92,142 271,072 369,214 402,154
71,776 - 71,776 61,876
35,000 128,716 163,716 159,385
42,136 - 42,136 41,254
- 1,915,463 1,915,463 2,035,179
309,616 55,842 365,458 378,485
550,670 2,377,093 2,927,763 3,078,333

(continued on next page)



EXHIBIT A
Page 2
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(continued)
December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information as of December 31, 2013)
2014 2013
Total Total
Governmental  Business-Type Primary Primary
Activities Activities Government  Government
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes 3,182,542 - 3,182,542 3,194,908
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 12,201,804 3,703,080 15,904,884 16,184,558
Restricted for
Escrow accounts 101,897 - 101,897 100,108
203 Pump Station - 551 551 38,117
Auditing 24,549 - 24,549 25,609
Municipal retirement 79,735 - 79,735 65,439
Social Security 298,464 - 298,464 305,685
Tort immunity 1,862,270 - 1,862,270 2,037,487
Levee rehabilitation 2,680,476 - 2,680476 2,872,244
Unrestricted 3,064,220 2,530,584 5,594,804 5,624,425
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 20313415 $§ 6,234,215 $26,547,630 $27,253,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities
General government

Drainage and sanitation

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Sewer

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

EXHIBIT B
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended December 31, 2013)
Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position
Program Revenues Primary Government
Operating
Charges for Grants and Capital Governmmental Business-Type 2014 2013
Expenses Services Contributions Grants Activities Activities Total Total

§ 2,053,105 $ 214,990 $ - - $ (1,838,115) § - $(1,838,115) $(2,009,059)
3,012,411 - - - (3,012,411) - (3,012,411) (3,052,465)
5,065,516 214,990 - - {4,850,526) - (4,850,526) (5,061,524)

2,983,824 2,839,483 - - - (144,341) (144,341) 2,960
8,049,340 3,054,473 - - (4,850,526) (144,341) (4,994,867) (5,058,564)

General revenues
Taxes

Property 2,899,312 - 2,899,312 2,953,882

Payments in lieu of taxes 28,063 - 28,063 12,497

Replacement 1,334,347 - 1,334,347 1,518,810

Investment income 16,172 2,755 18,927 18,034
Net gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - (1,966) (1,966) (93,520)

Miscellaneous 1,142 - 10,142 19,015

Total general revenues 4,288,036 789 4,288,825 4,428,718
Change in net position (562,490) (143,552) (706,042) (629,846)

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 20,875,905 6,377,767 27,253,672 27,883,518

NET POSITION - ENDING $ 20,313,415 $ 6,234,215 $26,547,630 $27,253,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Metro East Sanitary District

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014

{With Summarized Comparative Information as of December 31, 2013)

ASSETS
Cash
Investments - certificates of deposit
Restricted escrow accounts
Design Escrow
Cortps of Engineers
Prepaid expenses
Receivables
Property taxes
Due from other funds
Due from component unit
Replacement taxes
Interest receivable
Other municipalities
Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Due to component unit
Pension contributions payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable property taxes

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses
Restricted
Escrow accounts
Auditing
Municipal retirement
Social Security
Tort immunity
Levee rehabilitation
Unassigned, reported in
General Fund

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABI ITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

EXHIBITC

2014 2013

Tort Other Total Total
Liability Governmental Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds Funds
31,112,367 $ 491,977 $ 197,844 $ 1,802,188 $ 908,231
3,699,711 2,127,271 121,464 5,948,446 6,960,139
1,726 - S 1,726 1,751
100,171 - - 100,171 100,108
193,809 - - 193,809 239,424
2,947 841 - 386,307 3,334,648 3,383,811
- - 98,824 98,324 165,361
129,500 - . 129,500 114,450
210,269 - - 210,269 314,063
2,942 1,166 104 4,212 3,464
1,250 - - 1,250 1,250
129,809 - - 129,309 139,197
$3,529,395 $2,620,414 $ 805,043 $ 11,954,852 $ 12,331,249
$ 76,654 $ - 3 15,488 3 92,142 3 85,742
71,776 - - 71,776 61,876
98,824 - - 98,824 165,361
11,205 - - 11,205 8,680
42,136 - - 42,136 41,254
300,595 - 15,488 316,083 362,913
2,947,841 - 386,807 3,334,648 3,383,811
193,809 - - 193,809 239,424
101,897 - - 101,897 100,108
- - 24,549 24,549 25,609
- - 79,735 79,735 65,439
- - 298,464 208,464 305,685
448,910 1,800,978 - 2,249,888 2,276,911
1,861,040 819,436 - 2,680,476 2,872,244
2,675,303 - - 2,675,303 2,699,105
5,280,959 2,620,414 402,748 3,304,121 8,584,525
$8,529,395 $2,620,414 $ 805,043 $ 11,954,852 $ 12,331,249




Metro East Sanitary District

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2014

TOTAL FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT C)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets of $18,650,984, net of accumulated depreciation of
$6,449,180, used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds. Uncollected

property taxes not currently available.

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT A)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

EXHIBIT D

$ 8,304,121

12,201,804

(344,616)

152,106

$ 20,313,415
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EXHIBIT E
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended December 31, 2013)
2014 2013
Tort Other Total Total
Liability Governmental Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes
Property taxes $2,585,825 3 - $ 350,284 $ 2,926,109 $ 2,947,935
Intergovernmental revenues
Replacement tax 1,246,955 - 87,392 1,334,347 1,518,810
Madison County sewer break reimbursement - - - - 612
Payment in lieu of taxes 28,063 - - 28,063 12,497
Building rental 12,000 - - 12,000 12,000
Fines and fees
Licenses and permits 75,847 - - 75,847 94,738
Farm ground rental 1,125 - - 1,125 1,125
Pumping services 127,143 - - 127,143 30,803
Interest income 10,136 5,518 518 16,172 14,139
Sale of surplus property and scrap 1,952 - - 1,952 29,027
Miscellanecus revenues and reimbursements 7,064 - - 7,064 11,100
Total revenues 4,096,110 5,518 438,194 4,539,822 4,672,786
EXPENDITURES
Current
Administration 1,617,994 - 432,179 2,050,173 2,141,490
Engineering 34,327 - - 34,327 25,715
General maintenance 2,077,578 - - 2,077,578 2,403,781
Project cost - pumping 620,063 - - 620,063 295,138
Capital expenditures 38,085 - - 38,085 318,974
Total expenditures 4,388,047 - 432,179 4,820,226 5,185,098
Net change in fund balance (291,937) 5,518 6,015 (280,404) (512,312)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,572,896 2,614,896 396,733 8,584,525 9,096,837
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $5,280,959 $ 2,620,414 $ 402,748 $ 8,304,121 $ 3,584,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT F

Metro East Sanitary District

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended December 31, 2014

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT E) £ (280,404)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Reduction (increase) in long-term debt related to compensated
absences is reported as an expenditure when paid in govern-
mental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding in
the statement of activities. (8,226)

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.
However, in the government-wide statement of activities and
changes in net position, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is
the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 38,086

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Add change in unavailable property tax receivable. (36,797)

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in govemmental funds.

Depreciation expense (275,149)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B) 3 (562,490)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT G

Metro East Sanitary District

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage System

Madison and St. Clair Counties, [llinois

March 31, 2014

(With Summarized Comparative [nformation as of March 3 1,2013)

Business-Type Activities

Sewer Fund
2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in checking account 1,861,339 $ 1835710
Investments 152,340 463,652
Receivables
Utility users 749,188 754,530
Granite City Regional Treatment - overpayment 92,659 -
Loans to Metro East Sanitary District - related party 10,802 -
City of Venice - sewer break - 23,856
Other - 1,104
Interest receivable 513 614
Total current assets 2,866,841 3,079,466
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash
203 Pump Station sinking fund 6,208 38,117
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Land and construction in progress 191,000 191,000
Assets being depreciated 12,184,248 12,134,924
Accumulated depreciation (6,636,989) (6,429,669)
Total noncurrent assets 5,738,259 5,896,255
Total assets 8,611,308 9,013,838
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 271,415 316,412
Accounts payable - restricted 5,657 -
Due to Metro East Sanitary District - 83,000
Current portion of long-term debt
Illinois EPA loan 119,716 115,385
Compensated absences 9,000 9,000
Total current liabilities 405,788 523,797

(continued on next page)
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage System

Madison and St. Clair Counties, Iilinois

(continued)
March 31, 2014

{With Summarized Comparative Information as of March 3 1,2013)

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
[llinois EPA loan
Compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
203 Pump Station
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

EXHIBIT G
Page 2

Business-Type Activities

Sewer Fund

2014 2013
1,915,463 2,035,179
55,842 77,095
1,971,305 2,112,274
2,377,093 2,636,071
3,703,080 3,745,691
551 38,117
2,530,584 2,593,959
$ 6234215 $ 6,377,767
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EXHIBIT H
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage System
Madison and St. Clair Counties, [linois
Year Ended March 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended March 31, 2013)
Business-Type Activities
Sewer Fund
2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Sales and service charges $ 2,827,266 $ 2,883,545
Lien fees 12,216 45,381
Miscellaneous | 136
Total operating revenues 2,839,483 2,929,562
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 1,062,148 1,034,443
Contractual services 380,191 353,781
Materials and supplies 65,020 74,398
Maintenance and repairs 163,772 137,570
Secondary treatment 1,102,267 1,116,560
Miscellaneous 3,106 4,503
Depreciation 207,320 205,347
Total operating expenses 2,983,824 2,926,602
Operating income (loss) (144,341) 2,960
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest income 2,755 3,895
Loss on sale of stock {1,966) -
Total nonoperating revenues 789 3,895
Change in net position (143,552) 6,855
TOTAL NET POSITION, BEGINNING 6,377,767 6,370,912
TOTAL NET POSITION, ENDING $ 6234215 $ 6,377,767

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



-14-
EXHIBIT {

Metro East Sanitary District

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage System
Madison and St. Clair Counties, [llinois

Year Ended March 31, 2014

{With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended March 31, 2013)

Business-Type Activities

Sewer Fund
2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 2,839,483 $ 2929562
Payments to suppliers (1,932,861) (1,055,319)
Payments to and for employees {(1,060,294) {1,033,840)
Net cash provided (used)
by operating activities (153,672) 840,403
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
None 5 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment (49,324) (300,042)
Payments related to [ilinois EPA loan (115,385) (111,055)
Net cash (used) by capital and
related financing activities (164,709) (411,097)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loss on sale of stock (1,966) -
Interest received 2,755 3,895
Net cash provided by
investing activities 789 3,895
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (317,592) 433,201
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF PERIOD 2,337,479 1,904,278
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF PERIOD $ 2,019,887 $ 2,337,479

(continued on next page)
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EXHIBIT I
Page 2

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage System
Madison and St, Clair Counties, Illinois
{continued)
Year Ended March 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended March 31, 2013)

Business-Type Activities

Sewer Fund
2014 2013

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) 5 (144,341) b 2,960
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 207,320 205,347
Changes in assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease in current assets

Receivables
Customers 5,342 49,242
Granite City Regional Treatment (92,659) -
Loans to Metro East Sanitary
District - related party (10,802) 600,000
City of Venice - sewer break 23,856 41
Other 1,104 (381)
Accrued interest receivable 101 314
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable {39,340) 46,003
Due to primary government (83,000) 17,480
Granite City Regional Treatment -
additional liability - (97,420)
Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay (21,253) 16,317
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES §  (153,672) b 840,403
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ACCOUNTED FOR AS FOLLOWS
Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted $ 1,861,339 $ 1,835,710
Investments 152,340 463,652
Restricted 6,208 38,117
TOTAL AS ABOVE $ 2,019,887 $§ 2337479

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable - other
governmental units
Intra-account receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Intra-account payable
Future project payments

EXHIBIT J
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended December 31, 2013)
Agency Funds
Blue Water Ditch
2014 2013
Fiduciary Fiduciary
Total Total
$ 130,097 $ 114,357
7,307 15,293
37,723 37,723
S sl 8 16737
$ 7,862 5 1,966
37,723 37,723
129,542 127,684
$ 175,127 ] 167,373

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-16-




S [

Metro East Sanitary District
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

INDEX TO NOTES

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

OTOZECASIEmAMEMUODY

Reporting Entity

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Accounting

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
Budgets

Cash and Investments

Receivables and Payables

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Capital Assets

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation/Sick Pay {(Compensated Absences)
Long-Term Obligations

Estimates

Comparative Data

Date of Management Evaluation

New GASB Pronouncements

Net Position

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Legal Compliance and Accountability

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Deposits and Investments

Capital Assets

Long-Term Debt

A,

B.

Summary and Discussion Relating to Debt Recorded on Accompanying
Financial Statements
Legal Debt Margin

[nterfund Receivables/Payables

(continued on next page)
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Note 1:
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Metro East Sanitary District
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Metro East Sanitary District (District) are prepared in accordance with
U. S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and

financial reporting principles. The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described
below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Metro East Sanitary District is a special district as outlined in the Illinois State Statutes. The
District’s executive Board consists of five members, three of which are appointed from Madison
County and two from St. Clair County. The District is responsible primarily for operating and
maintaining the storm water drainage system within its bi-county area.

The District has developed criteria to determine whether outside agencies with activities that benefit
the citizens of the District should be included within its financial reporting entity. The criteria for
including organizations within the District’s reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement

No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and GASB Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting
Entity: Omnibus,” is financial accountability. Financial accountability is defined as appointment
of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either the ability to impose will by the
primary government or the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or
impose a financial burden on the primary government. Based on these criteria, the following is a
component unit that has been presented as a blended component unit in the accompanying financial
statements:

Lansdowne Sewerage and Treatment System (Lansdowne Trunk)

The governing board of the District exercises control over the Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and
Venice Sewer Systems relative to rates for user fee charges, employees, disbursements and bond
issuance authorization and debt requirements. This System has a fiscal year end which differs from
that of the District. Financial information for the Lansdowne Trunk included in the accompanying
financial statements is financial information from Lansdowne’s fiscal year ended March 31, 2014,

The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Metro East
Sanitary District, P. O. Box 1366, Granite City, Illinois 62040.

B. Govemment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report financial information for the District as a whole excluding fiduciary activities of

(continued on next page)



Note 1:

8

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

the District such as Blue Water Ditch Funds. The effect of material interfund activity has been
eliminated from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges to extemal customers.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given func-
tion, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) operating grants and standard revenues that are restncted to meet-
ing the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary fund and fiduci-
ary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Major individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported in separate columns
with composite columns for nonmajor funds in the fund financial statements.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the District’s main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Tort Liability Fund accounts for the financial transactions related to legal matters and tort
action within the District.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Lansdowne Trunk - Madison and Venice Sewerage Fund accounts for the activities of the
sewerage operations. The District operates a collection and water distribution system for
transportation of sewerage to the City of Granite City’s treatment facility.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an inde-
pendent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demon-
strating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number
of funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

C.

Fund Accounting (continued)

Funds are classified into three categories: govermnmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities,
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds). The

General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in
some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector,
where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration.

Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds)
or to other departments or agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government.

The Blue Water Ditch Funds have been included as fiduciary funds due to the fiduciary responsi-
bility exercised over these funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues and additions are recorded when earned and expenses and deductions are
reported when a liability is incurred. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied (i.e., intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as reve-
nues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating
revenues/expenses include all revenues/expenses directly related to providing water, sewer and
recreation services. Incidental revenues/expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measure-
ment focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they
are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collect-
ible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The
District considered revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is incurred. How-
ever, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

(continued on next page)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 1°  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

E.

Property taxes, licenses, charges for services and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the District.

The District reports unavailable revenue on its financial statements. Unavailable revenues arise
when potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and *“available” criteria for recogni-
tion in the current period. Unavailable revenues also arise when resources are received by the
District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incur-
rence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are
met or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unavailable revenue is
removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operat-
ing revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for services. Operating
expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreci-
ation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Budgets

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less

from the date of acquisition.

Investments

United States government securities are recorded at cost and adjusted by amortization of discount
or premium. Time deposits and other deposits with financial institutions are recorded at original
cost plus accrued interest. Both of these approximate fair value.

(continued on next page)
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(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

G. Receivables and Payables

The District does not provide for an allowance for uncollectible accounts. This departure from
generally accepted accounting policies is not considered material.

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of a fiscal year are referred to as due to and from other funds.

The accompanying financial statement includes revenues from the 2013 property tax levy. Prop-
erty taxes are levied each year by the last Tuesday of December on all real property located in the
District. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The Madison
and St. Clair County Assessors are responsible for the taxes assessed. The values are adjusted by
various percentages depending upon the type of property (residential, commercial, etc.). The
assessed values are equalized by the [llinois Department of Revenue to ensure uniformity of
property assessments throughout the State. The County Clerks compute the annual tax rate by
dividing the fevy into the equalized value of each taxing unit. The Clerks then compute the tax for
each parcel by multiplying the aggregate rates of all the taxing units having jurisdiction over the
parcel by the equalized value. The tax amounts by parcel are forwarded to the County Collectors.

Property taxes are collected by the County Collectors who remit to the taxing units their respective
shares of the collection. Taxes levied in one year become due and payable in two installments in
St. Clair County and four installments in Madison County during the following year. The first
installment is usually due no later than August and the remaining installments are due throughout
the year. Taxes are collected from July 2014 through March 2015.

For governmental funds, only property taxes, which are intended to finance the current fiscal year
and collected within 60 days subsequent to year-end, are recorded as revenue.

H. Prepaid ltems/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this report are
recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

[. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 (amount not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value at
the date of donation.

(continued on next page)
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(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued

I. Capital Assets {continued)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Property, plant and equipment
is depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-15 years
Utility Systems 40 years
Vehicles 15 years

J.  Accumulated Unpaid Vacation/Sick Pay (Compensated Absences)

In the fund financial statements, vested or accumutated vacation and/or sick pay that is expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested or accumulated vacation and/or sick pay
of proprietary funds and in the government-wide financial statements is recorded as an expense and
a liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16, no liability is recorded for non-
vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for the
portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that are estimated to be taken as “terminal leave” prior
to retirement.

Employees eamn 12 days of sick pay per year. If at December 31 the employee does not have 6 sick
days remaining, any future sick days will be earned at 1 per month in the following year. Vacation
time is provided based on the following schedule:

After Number
Years of of Weeks
Employment of Vacation
1 1
2 2
5 3
10 4

One additional day of vacation is provided after 10 years of employment for each additional year
employed.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

J.

M.

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation/Sick Pay (Compensated Absences) {continued)

At December 31, 2014, District employees have accumulated $64,692 in accrued vacation and
$279,924 in accrued sick pay.

Current liabilities of the governmental activities include $35,000 of these compensated absences.

At March 31, 2014, Lansdowne Sewerage system employees have accumulated $64,842 in accrued
vacation and sick pay.

Current liabilities include $9,000 of these compensated absences.

Long-Term Obligations

In government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial state-
ments, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
govemmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type financial statements.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount,

As of December 31, 2014 the District has no outstanding bonds.
Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported revenues and expenditures. Actual results could
vary from estimates that were used.

Comparative Data

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in selected sections of the accompanying
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s financial
position and operations. However, complete comparative data (i.e., presentation of prior year totals
by fund type in each of the statements) has not been presented since this inclusion would make the
statements unduly complex and difficult to read.

Date of Management Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 29, 2015, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

(continued on next page)
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(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 1°  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

0. New GASB Proncuncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued several new pronouncements that the
District has reviewed for application to their accounting and reporting.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the District will be adopting GASB Statement No. 68,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014, which
establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, and expenditures for pension plans. The statement will require the District to recognize
an expense and the net pension liability for agent employer plans and the proportionate share of net
pension liability of cost-sharing plans in the government-wide financial statements. In addition,
GASB Statement No. 68 will require an expenditure and a net pension liability to be recognized on
the governmental fund financial statements for the portion of the liability expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources.

GASB Statement No. 65, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, effective for periods

beginning after December 15, 2012, which requires the reclassification of some assets and liabilities
to deferred outflows and inflows of resources.

P. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and lia-
bilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling legislation or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Q. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s)
and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
District has no items that qualify for reporting in this category. In addition to liabilities, the state-
ment of financial position and the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for defer-
red inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has only one
type of item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable proper-
ty taxes, is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the statement of net position.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Legal Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Data

The District followed these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1.

Prior to March 6 the Board of Commissioners issued a tentative operating budget for 2014. The
operating budget included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The budget
was made available for public inspection for at least thirty days prior to the public hearing.

A public hearing was conducted on March 19, 2014 to obtain taxpayer comments.

After the public hearing the budget was legally enacted through passage of an ordinance on
March 19, 2014,

Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Unused appropriations for all of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.

The budgeted amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts and
have not been amended or revised during the year.

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

As of December 31, 2014, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable - consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitu-
tional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation, or because of constraints

that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations
of other governments.

Committed - consists of fiind balances that can only be used for specific purposes pur- ]
suant to constraints imposed by formal action by the District’s highest level of decision

making authority. The District has no committed fund balances as of December 31,
2014.

Assigned - consists of fund balances that are intended to be used for specific purposes but
are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the District’s Board or their
designee. The District has no assigned fund balances as of December 31, 2014.

(continued on next page) |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (continued)

Unassigned - fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use ex-
temnally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned and unassigned - in
order as needed.

As of December 31, 2014, fund balances are composed of the following:

Nonspendable Restricted Unassigned

General Fund
Prepaid expenses $ 193,809 $ - % -
Tort immunity - 448,910 -
Escrow accounts - 101,897 -
Levee rehabilitation - 1,861,040 -
Unassigned - - 2,675,303
Total general fund 193,809 2,411,847 2,675,303

Tort Liability
Tort immunity - 1,800,978 -
Levee rehabilitation - 819,436 -
Auditing - 24,549 -
Municipal retirement - 79,735 -
Social Security - 298,464 -
Total § 193,809 $5435009 $2,675303

Deposits and Investments

The District is authorized by state statute to make deposits/investments in insured commercial banks,
savings and loan institutions, obligations of the United States of America, insured credit union shares,
money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or
agreement to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term commercial paper
rated within the highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the Illinois Funds
Investment Pool. The District has no investment policy which would further limit its investment
options. The District does not enter into any reverse repurchase agreements.

Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits totaled $9,850,175 and bank balances totaled
$9,957,823. Of the bank balances, $599,098 was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and $9,358,725 was covered by pledged collateral held in the District’s name.

(continued on next page)
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(continued) |

December 31, 2014 |

?

Deposits and Investments (continued) |
Investments

The District’s investments are categorized as either (1) insured or registered or for which the securities
are held by the District or its agent in the District’s name, (2) uninsured and unregistered investments
for which the securities are held by the broker’s or dealer’s trust department or agent in the District’s
name or (3) uninsured and unregistered for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by
its trust department or agent but not in the District’s name.

[ilinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the State of Illinois, Office of the Treasurer, which
allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. Illinois Funds is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule
2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at Illinois Funds
share price, the price for which the investment could be sold. The difference between fair value and the f
value at Illinois Funds share price is immaterial.

Carrying
Amount
Investment not subject to categorization:
Illinois Funds $ 152340
Total investments 152,340
Total deposits (above) 9,850,175
TOTAL DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS $10,002,515
Deposits at December 31, 2014 and March 31, 2014 appear in the financial statements as summarized "
below:
Exhibit A Exhibit A
Statement of Statement of Exhibit J
Net Assets Net Assets Statement of
Governmental Business-Type Net Assets Total
Funds Funds Fiduciary Funds As Above
Cash $ 1,802,188 § 1,861,339 b 130,097 $ 3,793,624
Investments 5,948,446 152,340 - 6,100,786
Restricted accounts 101,897 6,208 108,105

“§ 7852531 § 2019887 § 130,007 § 10,002,515

Concentration of Credit Risk - As of December 31, 2014, 100% of the District’s investments are in the
Illinois Funds investment pool. The maturity in years for the [llinois Funds investment pool is less than
one year.

{continued on next page)
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Note 4:

(continued)
December 31, 2014

Deposits and Investments {continued)

Interest Rate Risk - The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest

rates.

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds and money market
mutual funds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The
District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of June 30, 2014
the District’s investments in the state investment pool was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.

Note 5: Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings

Beginning Ending

Balances [ncreases Decreases Balances
3 1,715,418 $ - s - $ 1,715.418
13,862,153 - - 13,862,153
2,515,758 38,086 - 2,553,844
519,569 - - 319,569
16,897,480 38.086 - 16,935,566
5,131,537 167,053 - 5,258,590
875,226 82,411 - 957,637
167,268 25,685 - 192,953
6,174,031 275,149 - 6,449,180
10,723,449 (237.063) - 10,486,186
3 12,438.867 $ (237.063) _§ - $ 12,201,804
s 191,000 $ - $ - 3 191,000
3,323,798 - - 3,323,798

(continued on next page)
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Note 5: Capital Assets (continued)

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Balances
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (continued)
Capital assets being depreciated (continued)
Equipment 2,871,978 49,324 2,921,302
Office equipment 21,030 - 21,030
Force main, trunk lines and
treatment plant 5918,118 - 5918118
Total capital assets
being depreciated 12,134,924 49,324 12,184,248
Less accumulated depreciation 6,429,669 207,320 6,636,989
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 5,705,255 (157.996) 5,547,259
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 5896255 $ (157996) 3 $ 5,738,259

Depreciation expense is charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General administration $ 2,147
Drainage
General maintenance 96,370
Project costs 176,632

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 275,149

Depreciation expense is charged to business-type activities as follows:

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Sewer Fund $ 207,320

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES $ 207,320

Note 6: Long-Term Debt

A. Summary and Discussion Relating to Debt Recorded on Accompanying Financial Statements

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended December 31, 2014
and the related fund where this debt is recorded on the accompanying financial statements:

(continued on next page)
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{continued)
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Note 6: Long-Term Debt (continued)

A. Summary and Discussion Relating to Debt Recorded on Accompanying Financial Statements

(continued)
Balance Balance Due
January 1, New Debt Debt December 31, Within
Description and Purpose 2013 {ssued Retired 2014 One Year
Primary Government
Govemnmental Activities
Other Funds - Compensated Absences
Accumulated vacation pay $ 54526 % 10,166 § - % 64,692 § 5000
Accumulated sick pay 281,864 - 1,940 279,924 30,000
Total other funds -
compensated absences 336,390 10,166 1,940 344 616 15,000
Total Governmental Funds $ 336390 $ 10166 $ 1940 $§ 344616 § 35000
Balance Balance Due
Aprl 1, New Debt Debt March 31, Within
2013 Issued Retired 2014 One Year
Business-Type Activities
Water Fund/Sewer Funds
IEPA Loan #1 - Water $ 2,150,564 % - % 115385 $2035179 § 119,716
Compensated absences
Accumulated sick pay 86,095 - 21,253 64,842 9,000
Total Business-Type Activities $ 2236659 % - $136,638  $2,100,021 § 128716

1. Accumulated Sick Pay
All regular, full-time employees of the District can accumulate sick days. This amount repre-

sents the liability for the District for accumulated sick days as of December 31, 2014 and
March 31, 2014,

2. Accumulated Vacation Pay
All regular, full-time employees of the District accumulate vacation days. This amount repre-

sents the liability for the District for accumulated vacation days as of December 31, 2014 and
March 31, 2014.

3. IEPA Loan #1 - Business-Type Activities

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the District entered into a loan/grant agreement
with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for construction of a 24 inch replacement

(continued on next page)
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(continued)
December 31, 2014
Note 6: Long-Term Debt (continued)

A. Summary and Discussion Relating to Debt Recorded on Accompanying Financial Statements
{continued)

3. IEPA Loan #1 - Business-Type Activities {continued)

sewer main and emergency generators. The loan portion is approved for $2,317,146 and the
District has drawn down 100% on the loan and received $721,854 in grant revenues as of
March 31, 2014. The loan is a 20 year loan with an annual fixed rate of 0%.

The annual requirements to amortize the [EPA Loan as of March 31, 2014 is as follows:

Year
Ending
March 31, Principal [nterest Total

2015 $ 119,716.40 5} - } 11971640
2016 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2017 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2018 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2019 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2020 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2021 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2022 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2023 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2024 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2025 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2026 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2027 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2028 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2029 119,716.40 - 119,716.40
2030 119,716.4G - 119,716.40
2031 119,716.40 - 119,716.40

I S L
$ 2.035,178.80 5 -  2,035,178.80

B. Legal Debt Margin
The computation of legal debt margin at December 31, 2014 is as follows:

ASSESSED VALUATION, 2013 TAX YEAR $ 732,857,178

Statutory debt limitation (5.75% of assessed valuation) b 42,139,288
General obligation bonds outstanding -

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN b 42,139,288

(continue& on next page)
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(continued)
December 31, 2014
Note 7: Interfund Receivables/Payables
Interfund receivables and payables balances, at December 31, 2014, are as follows:
Due From Due To
Primary Govemment Governmental Activities
Major Business-Type Fiduciary
Governmental Funds Activities Funds
Tort Other
Liability Governmental Sewer Blue Water Total
General Fund Funds Fund Funds Due From

Governmental Activities

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund $ - $ - 3 98824 § - - § 93824
$ - 3 - 3 98824 § - § - $ 98824
————————————a———————— ————————

Note 8:

Interfund balances are the result of temporary loans and/or reimbursements for services provided.

The interfund balance displayed above relates to Metro East Sanitary District at December 31, 2014 and
varies from that of the Lansdowne Sewerage System at its year-end of March 31, 2014,

Other Note Disclosures

A. Retirement Commitments - [llinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The District’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability
benefits, post-retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
District’s plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirernent Fund (IMRF), an agent mulitiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes

financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained online at
www.imrforg.

Funding Policy

As set by statute, the District’s regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual
covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to
member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The District contri-
bution rate for calendar year 2013 was 11.04% of annual covered payroll. The District also contrib-
utes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are
pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF
Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

(continued on next page)



=35 -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 8:  Other Note Disclosures {continued)

A. Retirement Commitments - [llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (continued)

Annual Pension Cost
For calendar year ending December 31, 2013, the District’s annual pension cost was $312,430.

Trend Information

Calendar Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/13 $ 312,430 100% $ 41,254
12/31/12 287,283 100% 40,390
12/31/11 279,340 100% 39,544

The required contribution for 2013 was determined as part of the December 31, 2011 actuarial
valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31,
2011 included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment ex-
penses), (b) projected salary increases of 4% a year, attributable to inflation, (¢) additional projected
salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10% per year depending on age and service, attributable to
senjority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the
District’s regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between
the actuarial and market value of assets. The regular plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability at

December 31, 2011 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 30 year
basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the regular plan was 92.54%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $8,159,600 and the actuarial value of assets
was $7,550,915, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $608,685. The
covered payroll for calendar year 2013 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan)
was $2,829,984 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 22%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) follow-
ing the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

(continued on next page)
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Note 8: Other Note Disclosures (continued)

B. Due from Other Municipalities

General Fund

This account is an amount due from the District of Caseyville, Illinois in connection with the rental
of a sewerage line within the District. Annual charges total $2,500 and are due annuatlly at June 30.

C. Risk Management

Insurance
The District purchases commercial general liability, workers’ compensation, auto and property

insurance through a local insurance broker for all risks. There have been no significant reductions
in coverage for the current year.

The District, therefore, retains no significant amount of risk. The District is liable for any claims in

excess of its coverage liability. At December 31, 2014, no claims were in excess of coverage for
the current or prior three years.

D. Tort Expenditures

The District has a restricted liability insurance fund as follows:

Tort
General Fund Liability Fund
Insurance Liability

Tort Tort
Restricted for tort immunity - 12/31/13 $ 480,002 $ 1,796,909
2013 Levy collected in 2014 369,866 -
Interest income 188 4,069
Insurance/tort expenses (401,146) -
Restricted for tort immunity - 12/31/14 $ 4489210 $ 1,800,978

E. Tort Liability Fund

Legal Judgments/Claims

Reported judgments (tort liability) are principally funded through property taxes over a period of
time. Taxes collected are accumulated in the Tort Liability Fund to accumulate a reserve for the
defense of the District and/or to pay legal claims.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 8:  Other Note Disclosures (continued)

F. Corps of Engineers and District Improvement Project

For a number of years, the District, working in partnership with the Federal Corps of Engineers,
has been making improvements to its internal systems of levees, ditches and pumping stations.
Funding for these improvements has been established at 25% District and 75% Federal. The ac-
companying financial statements do not reflect amounts being spent by the federal government on
this project, as these amounts are indeterminable on an annual basis at the District level.

From time to time, in addition to direct cash payments to the Corps of Engineers for its 25% share
of costs, the District may be responsible for 100% of certain cost items in the form of cash pay-
ments to vendors and/or work on a particular project being done totally by District machinery and
personnel (work in kind). All of these District costs are reflected in the accompanying financial
statements on an annual basis. It is anticipated that most of the 100% District costs will be
considered by the Corps of Engineers, at the end of the overall project, as part of the 25% share
contribution due by the District toward the rehabilitation project.

During 2005 the District received $7,144 in reimbursement from the Corps of Engineers. These
reimbursements represent prior year District share payments, which have not been used by the
Corps of Engineers for their respective projects as of the dated reimbursement.

During 2006 the Corps of Engineers requested $986,667 from the District for upcoming projects.
This payment was reflected as a current year expense in the financial statements.

During 2008 the District received $22,520 in reimbursement from the Corps of Engineers. These
reimbursements represent prior year District share payments, which have not been used by the
Corps of Engineers for their respective projects as of the dated reimbursement.

G. Design Escrow Accounts

During 1999 the District, as the local sponsor, opened accounts to track funds being contributed by
the State of Illinois/Department of Natural Resources and various government participants to pay
for a study titled the East St. Louis, Illinois and Vicinity Interior Flood Control Study. The actual
study is being conducted by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers and paid for from the above funds.
Participating governments include the Metro East Sanitary District, Madison County, St. Clair
County and the State of Illinois Office of Water Resources. During 2004, 2003 and 2002 the State
of lllinois/Department of Natural Resources, Office of Water Resources contributed $41,000,
$23,000 and $229,000, respectively, and the District, along with other local sponsors, contributed
$-0-, $-0- and $199,800, respectively, to the study.

During 2006 the Department of Natural Resources contributed $47,117 toward this project with the

District providing an additional $42,883 from its “Design Escrow” restricted account, for a total
expenditure of $90,000.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 8:  Other Note Disclosures (continued)
G. Design Escrow Accounts (continued)

During 2007, as reflected within these financial statements, the Department of Natural Resources
contributed $37,500 toward this project. The Metro East Sanitary District provided an additional

$12,000 and Madison and St. Clair counties provided $12,750 each. Total project expenditures in
this regard were $75,000.

During 2008, as reflected within these financial statements, the Department of Natural Resources
contributed $86,000 toward this project. The Metro East Sanitary District provided an additional
$13,760 and Madison and St. Clair counties provided $14,620 each. Total project expenditures in
this regard were $86,000.

During 2009 the Department of Natural Resources contributed $5,700 toward this project. The
Metro East Sanitary District provided an additional $15,584 and Madison and St. Clair counties
provided $16,558 each. Total project expenditures in this regard were $33,725.

There was no activity in this regard during 2014 and 2013.

H. Lease of Office Space - Related Party Transaction

The Lansdowne System leases office space on a monthly basis from the Metro East Sanitary
District. Currently, monthly lease payments are $1,000. No formal lease has been executed

between the related parties. Therefore, an analysis of future minimum rental payments is
inappropriate.

I. 203 Pump Station

On July 23, 1997 the Lansdowne System entered into an agreement to purchase a sanitary pumping
station located on Gateway International Race Track real estate adjacent to Highway 203, north of
Interstate 70 in East St. Louis, lllinois for $259,895.29. The amortized cost of the station is to be
payable monthly by the owners of the race track and/or the occupant of the current race track
property. This loan was paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999.

In accordance with an additional agreement related to the above station, all current and any future
users of the pump station are responsible for the cost of maintenance. The Lansdowne System is
responsible for maintaining the station and is to bill users for the related costs.

The additional agreement referenced in the preceding paragraph also provides for the accumulation
of funds for the ultimate replacement of worn pumps and parts. This account is to be increased by
payments payable on a monthly basis over a five (5) year term by all users of the system until it
reaches a maximum balance of $50,000. The accompanying financial statements account for these

accumulations as restricted assets totaling $6,208 and $38,117 at March 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)
December 31, 2014

Other Note Disclosures {continued)

L.

Expenditures in Excess of Budget

Actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures in the District’s Auditing Fund, in the amount
of $285, during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Blue Water Ditch Fiduciary Funds

As noted above, these financial statements include fiduciary funds which are used to account for
assets held on behalf of outside parties. As displayed, these Blue Water Ditch funds include an
operating as well as a sinking fund. Cash is received by the District from the following local
municipalities in relation to their participation percentage in the Blue Water Ditch Project. The
State of llinois Office of Water Resources is the oversight agency for this Blue Water Ditch
Project.

Participation
Municipality Percentage

Village of Cahokia 59.70
St. Clair County 4.90
City of Alorton 8.10
City of Centreville 23.60
Centreville Township 3.70
100.00

The Sinking Fund is used to accumulate revenues for eventual system renewals and replacements.

The Operations and Maintenance Fund is used to account for ongoing operations of the Blue Water
Ditch pumping station including the cost for electricity to operate the pumping system. Costs in
this regard totaled $51,740 in 2014 and $65,686 in 2013.

Levee Rehabilitation

In response to possible decertification of the levee systems on the lllinois side of the Mississippi
River at St. Louis by the Federal Corps of Engineers, legislation was passed which increased the
local sales tax to provide funding for needed levee repairs. Because these new sales tax revenues
would not become available for some time and work on the levee repairs needed to begin in order
to avoid possible decertification, accumulated funds within the Metro East Sanitary District were
restricted for the cost of these beginning repairs.

In response to possible decertification of the levee systems on the Illinois side of the Mississippi
River at St. Louis by the Federal Corps of Engineers, legislation was passed which increased the
local sales tax to provide funding for needed levee repairs. Because these new sales tax revenues
would not become available for some time and work on the levee repairs needed to begin in order

(continued on next page)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)
December 31, 2014

Note 8: Qther Note Disclosures {continued)
L. Levee Rehabilitation (continued)

to avoid possible decertification, accumulated funds within the Metro East Sanitary District were

restricted for the cost of these beginning repairs.

On June 23, 2008 the govemor approved amendments to the Illinois State Statute which set aside
90% of the accumulated cash balances within the District’s Tort Liability Fund at January 1, 2008
to be used to provide “...capital for levee or river related scientific studies including the construc-
tion of facilities for such purposes”. The following is an analysis of the District’s Tort Liability
Fund and General Fund restriction/reservation for levee rehabilitation.

1/1/08 cash balances 3 7374222
90% $ 6,636,800
Expenditures during
2008 (92,809)
2009 (1,636,206)
2010 (791,232)
2011 (631,716)
2012 (30,348)
2013 (432,359)
2014 (198,343)
Interest income on account 515,587

Equipment purchases and Corps of

Engineers project credit (658,898)

52680476

Levee restriction is displayed in the
accompanying financial statements

in the following funds:
$ 1,861,040
819,436
§ 2,680,476

M. IDOT - Tripie Box Culverts

Initial restriction/reservation

Restriction 12/31/14

General Fund
Tort Liability Fund

Total

In 2010, during the preparation work related to a new Mississippi River Bridge, it was determined
that a District owned culvert known as the Triple Box Culvert needed to be cleaned and evaluated
with respect to the new bridge project. In this connection, IDOT agreed to reimburse the District
for any engineering costs it incurred. All of the actual cleaning is provided by IDOT directly. As
of December 31, 2014 the District has incurred and been reimbursed $448,452 from [DOT.
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SCHEDULE A
Metro East Sanitary District
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014
General Fund Tort Liability Fund
Original Original
and Final and Final
Budget Actual Budget Actual
REVENUES -
Property taxes $ 2727000 § 2585825 % - 3
[ntergovernmental receipts

Replacement taxes 1,312,608 1,246,955 -

Payment in leu of taxes - 28,063 -

Building rental - 12,000 5
Fines and fees

Licenses and permits 95,000 75,347 -

Farm ground rental - 1,125 -

Pumping services - 127,143 - -
Interest income - 10,136 - 5,518
Sale of surplus property and scrap - 1,952 -
Miscellaneous revenues

and reimbursements 96,700 7,064 -

Total revenues 4,231,308 4,096,110 - 5,518
EXPENDITURES
Administration

Salaries ' 314,000 287,041 -

Electric service 5,000 4,072 5

Insurance - group health and welfare 542,620 539,660 5

Insurance - retiree medical 21,000 17,973 -

Insurance - bonding 1,600 1,473 -

Insurance - unemployment 48,000 36,315 -

Insurance - workers' compensation 414,000 305,570 -

Insurance - liability 134,200 95,576 -

Telephone 4,600 3,750 =

Water, trash and sewerage 500 413 -

Postage 1,100 417 -

Material and supplies

Vehicles 3,000 - -
Equipment 2,000 678 -
Building 5,000 5,058 -

{continued on next page)
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SCHEDULE A
Page 2
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2014
General Fund Tort Liability Fund
Original Original
and Final and Final
Budget Actual Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES (continued)
Administration (continued)
Office expense 9,000 8,367 - .
Licenses and title 650 - - -
Copier lease 3,600 2,684 - -
Building security 1,100 1,008 - .
Legal services 86,600 84,771 55,000 -
Legal publications 8,500 8,994 - -
Payroll processing 6,500 5,133 - e
Land and title work 1,000 400 - -
Training and travel 4,700 - - -
Dues and subscriptions 400 414 - e
Petty cash 1,000 460 - =
Minor medical fees 7,500 4,431 - =
Easements 200 200 - -
Flood prevention expenditires - noncapital 200,000 198,344 - -
Bank fees 200 k]| - -
Employee benefits 500 - - -
Public relations - 4,355 - -
Miscellaneous 500 406 - -
Engineering
Engineering services 50,000 34,327 - -
General maintenance
Salaries - Madison County 949,200 788,049 - S
Salaries - St. Clair County 947,100 823,885 - -
Electric service 17,000 18,700 - -
Telephone 18,000 13,309 - -
Water, trash and sewerage 10,000 11,186 - 5
Material and supplies
Vehicles 70,000 39,378 - -
Office 2,500 1,949 = =
Buildings 70,600 29,393 - -
Equipment 185,000 86,546 - -
Levee and canals 50,000 21,376 - -
Highway 162 Triple culvert 40,000 29,427 - -
Motor fuel and lubricants 210,000 166,126 - -
Moving equipment 2,000 188 - -

(continued on next page)
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SCHEDULE A
Page 3

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

General Fund Tort Liability Fund
Original Original
and Final and Final
Budget Actual Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES (continued) B
General maintenance (continued)
Equipment rental 5,000 1,612 - -
Building security 4,000 2,808 - -
Safety equipment - noncapital 5,000 2,104 - -
Uniform expense 15,000 16,458 - -
Road improvements 30,000 16,366 - -
Weed control 7,800 8,718 - -
Project costs
Salaries 171,400 438,000 - -
Electric service 160,000 160,664 - -
Telephone 2,500 1,330 - -
Water, trash and sewerage 1,500 1,242 - -
Material and supplies
Equipment 200,000 7,132 - -
Building 50,000 9,748 - -
Equipment rental 500 960 - -
Building security 500 987 - -
Capital outlay
Equipment purchases 210,000 38,085 - -
Total expenditures 5,312,570 4,388,047 55,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ (1,081,262) (291,937) $ (55,000) 5,518
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,572,896 2,614,896

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 5,280,959 $2,620,414



SCHEDULE B
Metro East Sanitary District
IMRF TREND INFORMATION
December 31, 2014
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of {AAL) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)/(c))
12/31/13 $7,550915 § 8,159,600 $ 608,685 92.54% $ 2,829,984 21.51%
12/31/12 7,032,454 8,158,766 1,126,312 86.20% 2,652,662 42.46%
12/31/11 6,842,515 8,193,026 1,350,511 83.52% 2,680,806 50.38%
Employer Contributions
Actuarial Annual Percentage
Valuation Pension of APC
Date Cost (APC) Contributed
12/31/13 b 312,430 100%
12/31/12 287,283 100%
12/31/11 279,340 100%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2013 is $8,874,903. On a market basis, the

funded ratio would be 108.77%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with
Metro East Sanitary District. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued liability for retirees

is 100% funded.
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SCHEDULE C

Metro East Sanitary District
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2014

Note 1: Expenditures in Excess of Budget
The following fund had expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts:

None

R
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STATEMENT 1|

Metro East Sanitary District

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Funds

Municipal Social
Auditing Retirement Security
Fund Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash $ 23,754 $ 37,294 $ 136,796 $197.,844
Investments - certificates of deposit - - 121,464 121,464
Due from other funds 795 57,929 40,100 98,824
Receivables
Property taxes 26,263 208,384 152,160 386,807
Interest receivable - - 104 104
TOTAL ASSETS $ 50,812 $ 303,607 $ 450,624 $ 805,043
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable h) - $ 15,488 $ - $ 15,488
Deferred revenue 26,263 208,384 152,160 386,807
Total liabilities 26,263 223,872 152,160 402,295
MUNICIPAL EQUITY
Fund balance
Reserved 24,549 79,735 298,464 402,748
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

MUNICIPAL EQUITY $ 50,812 $ 303,607 $ 450,624 $ 805,043
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STATEMENT 2
Metro East Sanitary District
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Special Revenue Funds
Municipal Social
Auditing Retirement Security
Fund Fund Fund Totals
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 24218 $ 192,154 $ 133,912 $ 350,284
Intergovernmental receipts
Replacement taxes - 51,650 35,742 87,392
Interest income 7 44 467 518
Total revenues 24,225 243,848 170,121 438,194
EXPENDITURES
General government 25,285 229,552 177,342 432,179
Net change in fund balance {1,060) 14,296 (7,221) 6,015
Fund balance, beginning of year 25,609 65,439 305,685 396,733
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 24549 $ 79,735 § 298,464 $ 402,748
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STATEMENT 3
Metro East Sanitary District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
NONMAIJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Municipal Social
Auditing Retirement Security
Fund Fund Fund
Original Original Original
and Final and Final and Final
Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
REVENUES
Property taxes $23,800 $24,218 $190,530 $192,154 $133,960 $133912
Intergovernmental receipts
Replacement taxes - - 51,650 51,650 35,742 35,742
Interest income - 7 - 44 - 467
Total revenues 23,800 24,225 242,180 243,848 169,702 170,121
EXPENDITURES
General government 25,000 25,285 250,000 229552 183,000 177,342
Net change in tund balance $ (1,200) (1,0600 3% (7.,820) 14296  §(13,298) (7,221}
] _ ]
Fund balance, beginning of year 25,609 65,439 305,685

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $24,549 $ 79,735 $298,464
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Metro East Sanitary District

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and service charges
Lien fees and miscellaneous charges

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration

Personal services
Contractual services
Materials and supplies
Maintenance and repairs
Secondary treatment
Miscellaneous

Economic Stimulus loan repayments

Fixed asset purchases
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
NONOPERATING INCOME
Interest income

Proceeds from sale of investment

Total nonoperating revenues

Change in Net Position

ENTERPRISE FUND

Year Ended March 31, 2014

Sewer Fund
Original
and Final
Budggt Actual
$ 2,900,000 $ 2,864,745
40,000 9,515
2,940,000 2,874,260
1,105,450 1,093,010
414,650 465,696
74,000 61,899
311,000 157,663
1,250,000 1,246,427
5,000 3,339
119,716 115,385
60,000 49,324
3,339,816 3,192,743
(399,816) (318,483)
3,500 2,856
- 3,082
3,500 6,838

$  (396,316) $  (311,645)
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Metro East Sanitary District

BUDGET - GAAP RECONCILIATION
ENTERPRISE FUND

Year Ended March 31, 2014

Reconciliation to GAAP basis tinancial statements:
Change in Net Position - cash basis - per Statement 4

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net position - cash basis
to GAAP basis

Increases (decreases) in assets which are not recorded using the cash basis
Depreciation on fixed assets
Receivables
Customers
Granite City Regional Treatment overpayment
Due trom Metro East Sanitary District - related party
City of Venice - sewer break
Accrued interest receivable
(Increases) decreases in liabilities which are not recorded
using the cash basis
Accounts payable
Due to Metro East Sanitary District - related party
Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay

Cash payments not considered expenses on GAAP basis statements

Illinois EPA loan payments
Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from the sale of investment is not considered income
on GAAP basis financial statements

Loss on the sale of investment is considered an expense on
GAAP basis financial statements

Change in Net Position - per Exhibit H

STATEMENT 4A

$(311,645)

(207,320)

(5,342)
92,659
9,699

(23,856)

(101)

39,340
83,000
21,253

115,385
49,324

(3,982)

(1,966)

$(143,552)
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STATEMENT 5

Metro East Sanitary District

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

December 31, 2014
(With Summarized Comparative Information for Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Agency Funds
Blue Water Ditch
Operation 2014 2013
and Sinking Fiduciary Fiduciary
Maintenance Fund Total Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 44,504 $ 8559 $ 130,097 $ 114,357
Accounts receivable - other
govemnmental units 6,431 876 7,307 15,293
Intra-account receivable - 37,723 37,723 37,723
TOTAL ASSETS 3 50935 3 124,192 3 175,127 $ 167,373
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 5 7,862 3 - § 173862 $ 1,96
Intra-account payable 37,723 - 37,723 37,723
Future project payments 3,350 124,192 129,542 127,684
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 50,935 $ 124,192 $ 175,127 $ 167,373




FUNCTION/ACTIVITY
General administration
Drainage

General maintenance
Project costs

GOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL ASSETS

.52-

SCHEDULE 1
Metro East Sanitary District
SCHEDULE OF GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION/ACTIVITY
As of December 31, 2014
Total Land Buildings Equipment Vehicles
$ 164772 % - $ 83677 $ - § 81,095
2,559,852 - 268,465 1,852,913 438474
15,926,360 1,715,418 13,510,011 700,931 -
$18,650,984  $1,715418  $13,862,153  $2,553,844  $519.569




==
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SCHEDULE 2
Metro East Sanitary District
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GOVERNMENTAL CAPITAL ASSETS
BY FUNCTION/ACTIVITY
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Governmental Governmental
Capital Assets Capital Assets
1/1/14 Additions Deletions 12/31/14
FUNCTION/ACTIVITY
General administration $ 164,772 ) - $ - $ 164,772 E
Drainage =
General maintenance 2,521,766 38,086 - 2,559,852
Project costs 15,926,360 - - 15,926,360
GOVERNMENTAL
CAPITAL ASSETS $ 18,612,898 $ 38,086 $ = $ 18,650,984 i
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TABLE 1

ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, EXTENSIONS, COLLECTIONS,
ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES AND COSTS AND DEFERRED TAX REVENUE
LAST TEN YEARS
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(Estimated)
2014 2013
ASSESSED VALUATIONS $754,487.200 $732.857.178
Rate Extension Rate Extension
TAX RATES AND EXTENSIONS
General Fund 0.3120 $ 2,354,000 0.3120 $ 2,286,514
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 0.0263 198,350 0.0271 198,779
Social Security Fund 0.0192 145,192 0.0188 138,007
Auditing Fund 0.0033 25,000 0.0034 25,087
Liability Insurance Fund 0.0610 460,000 0.0523 383,295
Tort Liability Fund 0.0000 - 0.0000 -
Totals 0.4218 $ 3,182,542 0.4136 § 3,031,682
COLLECTIONS
General Fund 3 - $ 2,172,017
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - 188,745
Social Security Fund - 131,039
Auditing Fund - 23,824
Liability Insurance Fund - 363,951
Tort Liability Fund - -
Totals $ - $ 2,879,576
ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES AND COSTS
General Fund 3 - 8 -
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - -
Social Security Fund - -
Auditing Fund - -
Liability Insurance Fund - -
Tort Liability Fund - -
Totals 5 - 5 -
UNAVAILABLE TAX REVENUE
General Fund $ 2,354,000 s 114,497
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 198,350 10,034
Social Security Fund 145,192 6,968
Auditing Fund 25,000 1,263
Liability Insurance Fund 460,000 19,344
Tort Liability Fund - -

Totals 3 3,182,542 $ 152,106
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TABLE 1
Metro East Sanitary District
ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, EXTENSIONS, COLLECTIONS,
ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES AND COSTS AND DEFERRED TAX REVENUE
LAST TEN YEARS
2012 2011 2010
$755,632,796 $792,532.165 $730,676,187

Rate Extension Rate Extension Rate Extension
0.3120 § 2357574 0.3140 $ 2,488,305 0.3106 $ 2,269,154
0.0243 183,396 0.0191 151,112 0.0201 146,783
0.0204 154,505 0.0196 155,075 0.0211 154,293
0.0028 20,980 0.0025 20,006 0.0027 19,931
0.0421 318,254 0.0442 350,161 0.0462 337,517
0.0000 - 0.0000 - 0.0180 131,532
0.4016 $ 3,034,709 0.3993 $ 3,164,659 0.4187 $ 3,059210

- — -~ — -3 —— 1 b "

$ 2,254,832 $ 2421941 $ 2,201,832
175,364 147,875 141,640
147,746 151,757 148,708
20,077 19,583 19,244
304,323 342,678 325,720
- - 126,920
$ 2,902,342 $ 3,083,834 $ 2,964,064
$ 102,742 § 66,364 $ 67,322
8,032 3,237 5,143
6,759 3,318 5,585
903 423 687
13,931 7,483 11,797
- - 4,612
3 132,367 b 80,825 $ 95,146
3 - A - $ -
$ - 3 - $ B

{continued on next page)



ASSESSED VALUATIONS

TAX RATES AND EXTENSIONS
General Fund
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Social Security Fund
Auditing Fund
Liability Insurance Fund
Tort Liability Fund

Totals

COLLECTIONS
General Fund
[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Social Security Fund
Auditing Fund
Liability Insurance Fund
Tort Liability Fund

Totals

ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES AND COSTS

General Fund

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Social Security Fund

Auditing Fund

Liability Insurance Fund

Tort Liability Fund

Totals

UNAVAILABLE TAX REVENUE
General Fund
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Social Security Fund
Auditing Fund
Liability Insurance Fund
Tort Liability Fund

Totals

* Negative allowance as collections exceeded extension due to collection of delinquent taxes.
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2009 2008
$763,842.825 $729.619.424

Rate Extension Rate Extension
0.3119 $ 2,382,107 0.3207 $ 2,339,895
0.0135 103,022 0.0133 97,029
0.0187 142,965 0.0177 128,940
0.0027 20,623 0.0028 20,249
0.0350 267,242 0.0313 228,201
0.0228 174,415 0.0296 216,031
0.4046 $ 3,090,374 0.4153 $ 3,030,345
$ 2,289,994 $ 2,219,193
99,100 92,923
136,568 123,077
19,849 19,400
257,266 218,546
167,604 206,890
$ 2,970,381 $ 2,880,029
3 92,113 3 120,702
3,922 4,106
6,397 5,863
774 849
9,976 9,655
6,811 9,141
3 119,993 $ 150,316
3 - $ .
$ - $ -
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TABLE 1
Page 2
ASSESSED VALUATIONS, TAX RATES, EXTENSIONS, COLLECTIONS,
ALLOWANCE FOR LOSSES AND COSTS AND DEFERRED TAX REVENUE
LAST TEN YEARS
{continued)
2007 2006 2005
$729.619.424 $684.043.717 $654.404 591
Rate Extension Rate Extension Rate Extension
0.3098 $ 2,260,276 0.3097 g 2,118,281 0.3120 S 2,041,742
0.0112 81,602 0.0000 - 0.0000 -
0.0140 102,031 0.0173 118,607 0.0171 111,978
0.0028 20,429 0.0030 20,521 0.0032 20,759
0.0317 231,066 0.0119 81,694 0.0094 61,714
0.0328 239,282 0.0597 408,468 0.0786 514,281
0.4022 $ 2,934,686 0.4017 $ 2,747,571 0.4203 $ 2,750,474
$ 2,157.614 $ 2,054,948 $ 1973433
79,061 5 -
98,126 116,212 109,348
19,799 20,109 20,277
223,903 81,545 60,163
231,833 398,129 501,148
§ 2,810,336 $ 2,670,943 £ 2,664,369
$ 102,662 $ 63,333 $ 68,309
2,541 5 -
3,905 2,395 2,630
630 412 482
7,163 149 1,551
7,449 10,33¢ 13,133
$ 124,350 i) 76,628 $ 36,105
3 - 5 - $ -






